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NOTICE 2021-2022

HINDUSTAN HARDY LIMITED

Regd. Office: Plot No. C-12, M.I.D.C. Area, Ambad, Nashik – 422010, Maharashtra, INDIA. 

CIN: L29300MH1982PLC028498, Website : www.hhardys.com 

Tel. No.: 0253-2382118, Fax No.: + 0253-2382528, Email: co@hhardys.com

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Fortieth Annual General Meeting of the members of Hindustan 

Hardy Limited will be held on Tuesday 27th September 2022 at 2.30 p.m. (IST) through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audiovisual Means (“OAVM”)to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2022, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and the Auditors thereon.

2.  To declare dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

3.  To appoint a director in place of Ms. Devaki Saran (DIN 06504653) who retires by rotation 
and being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

4.  To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 139 and 142 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, M/s. Daga & Chaturmutha, Chartered 
Accountants (ICAI Registration No.: 101987W), be and is hereby re-appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a second term of five years from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the forty-fifth Annual General 
Meeting to be held in the year 2027 at such remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-
of-pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the Statutory Auditors from time to time.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED that Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575), who was appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from February 
11, 2022 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting in terms of 
Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) but who is eligible for appointment and 
has consented to act as a Director of the Company and in respect of whom the Company 

has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160 of the Act proposing 
his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as 
a Director of the Company.”
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 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152, Schedule 

IV and other applicable provisions of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575), a Non-
executive Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration that he meets 

the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI Listing 
Regulations and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a 
term of 5 (five) consecutive years from February 11, 2022 to February 11, 2027.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 94 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”) and rules made there under 

including any statutory modification(s), or re-enactment(s) thereof  for  the  time  being  in  
force  approval of  the  Members  of  the  Company  be  and  is hereby accorded to keep 

the Registers as prescribed under Section 88 of the Act and copies of Annual Returns 

under Section 92 of the Act, together with the copies of certificates and documents 
required to be annexed thereto or any other documents as may be required, at the 

Registered Office of the company and/ or at the office of Satellite Corporate Services 
Private Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Office No. 106 & 107, Dattani 
Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri-Kurla Road, Sakinaka,  Mumbai  -  400  072  and/
or  such other place where the office of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company is situated within Mumbai, from time to time.

 RESOLVED   FURTHER THAT   the   Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized 

to take all such actions and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be 

considered necessary, desirable and expedient for giving effect to this resolution.”

NOTES:

1.  In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA‘) 
has vide its General Circular dated May 5, 2020 read with General Circulars dated April 

8, 2020 and April 13, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, December 14, 2021 

and May 05, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars‘) permitted the holding 
of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM‘) through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) facility or 
other audio visual means (‘OAVM’), without the physical presence of the Members at 
a common venue. Further, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its 
Circulars dated May 12, 2020, January 15, 2021 and May 13, 2022 (‘SEBI Circulars’) has 
also granted certain relaxations. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 (‘Act‘), Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations‘) and MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM on 27th December  
2022, at 2.30pm . The registered office of the Company shall be deemed to be the venue 
for the AGM.

2.  Pursuant to the MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of Members as been 

dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the 
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Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 
for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

4.  The Statement setting out material facts pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 

2013, which sets out details relating to item nos. 4 to 6 of the Notice, and Additional 
information with respect to Directors / Auditors being appointed/ reappointed pursuant to 
Regulation 36(3) and (5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard on General 

Meetings (‘SS-2’) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are annexed 
hereto.

5.  In line with the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 

2021-2022 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail 

addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. The Notice convening the 
40th AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.hhardys.com 

and may also be accessed on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at  

www.bseindia.com. The Notice is also available on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.

nsdl.com.

6.  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed 

from Wednesday 21st September 2022 to Tuesday 27th September 2022 both days 
inclusive. 

7.  Members are requested to notify immediately any change of particulars such as 

name, postal address, e- mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of 
nomination, bank mandate details etc.:

(i)  To their Depositary Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts, 

and

(ii)  To the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s Satellite Corporate 
Services Pvt. Ltd., Office No. A/106-107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, 
Andheri Kurla Road, Safed Pool, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072, in respect of their 
physical share folios, if any, quoting their folio numbers.

8.  The dividend of ₹2 per share (i.e. 20%) on the Equity Shares of the Company of ₹ 10 
each, if declared at the AGM, will be paid subject to deduction of income tax at source 

(‘TDS’), as applicable, on or after 02nd October 2022 as under: 

 For Shares held in electronic form: 

 To all the Beneficial Owners as at the end of the day on 20th September 2022 as per 
the list of Beneficial Owners to be furnished by NSDL and Central Depository Services 
(India) Limited (‘CDSL’); and 
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 For Shares held in physical form: 

 To all the Members, whose names appears in the Company’s Register of Members after 

giving effect to valid transmission and transposition requests lodged with the Company 
as of the close of business hours on 20th September 2022.

9. In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, the 

Company has stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities held in 

physical form. Members holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested 

to kindly get their shares converted into demat /electronic form to get inherent benefits 
of dematerialisation. Further, Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular 

dated January 25, 2022 mandated listed companies to issue securities in demat form 

only while processing any service requests viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate; 
claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; 
endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities 
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested 
to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR – 4, the format 
of which is available on the website of the Company at co@hhardys.com.

10. Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not updated their email 

addresses with the Company are requested to update their email addresses by writing to 

the Company or Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, M/s Satellite Corporate 
Services Pvt. Ltd., Office No. A/106-107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri 
Kurla Road, Sated Pool, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072. Members holding shares in 
dematerialised mode are requested to register/update their email addresses with the 
relevant Depository Participants.

11. During the 40th AGM, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 

shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts and 
Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the 

Act, and other documents as mentioned in this Notice and explanatory statement will be 

available electronically for inspection by the Members during the AGM. Members seeking 

to inspect such documents can send their requests to the Company at co@hhardys.com.

12. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the dividend for the financial year 2014-15 onwards 
remaining unclaimed/unpaid for a period of seven years from the date they became due 
for payment shall be credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund set up by the 

Central Government. Members who have so far not claimed the dividend are requested 

to make claim with the Company as no claim shall lie against the fund or the Company in 

respect of individual amounts once credited to the said fund.

13. Pursuant to the provision of Section 124(6) of the Act, read with Rule 6 of the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 

2016 (“the IEPF Rules”) and amendments thereto, shares on which dividend has not been 
paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to the demat 

account of the IEPF Authority except for shares in respect of which there is a specific 
order of Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority restraining any transfer of the shares.
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 The Members/claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend, etc. have been transferred 
to the Fund may claim the shares by making an application to IEPF Authority in Form 

IEPF-5 (available on iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as decided by the Authority from 

time to time. The Member/claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a financial 
year as per the IEPF Rules and amendments thereto.

14. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

15. Updation of PAN and other details - SEBI vide its Circulars dated November 3, 2021 and 

December 14, 2021 mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details (i.e. postal address with 

pin code, email address, mobile number, bank account details) and Nomination details 

by holders of physical securities through Form ISR-1. It may be noted that any service 

request or complaint can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. Accordingly, 

the Company has sent individual letters to all the Members holding shares of the Company 

in physical form for furnishing their PAN, KYC and Nomination details. Members holding 

shares of the Company in physical form are requested to go through the requirements 

hosted on the website of the Company at www.hhardys.com furnish the requisite details.

16. Members holding shares in electronic form are advised to send their request for the 
change of address, bank particulars, residential status or request for transmission of 

shares etc. to their Depository Participant. The Company or its Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent cannot act on any such requests received directly from the members 

holding shares in electronic form. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS 
UNDER:

(i)  Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps 

mentioned for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see 

link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. 
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting 
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where 
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do 

not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID 

and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 

mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush

(ii)  Members may join the Meeting through Laptops, tablets and iPads for better 

experience.

(iii)  Further, Members will be required to use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting.

(iv)  Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 

Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable 
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Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

(v)  Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the 
Meeting may pre-register themselves by sending a request from their registered 

email address mentioning their names, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and 
mobile number at co@hhardys.com from 22nd September 2022 (10.00 a.m. IST) 

to 23rd September 2022 (5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have pre-registered 

themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers 

depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

(vi)  Institutional Investors, who are Members of the Company, are encouraged to attend 

and vote at the 40th AGM through VC/OAVM facility.

(vii)  Members who need assistance before or during the AGM may contact NSDL on 

evoting@nsdl.co.in/1800-222-990 or contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Asst. Vice President 
– NSDL or Mr. Sagar Ghosalkar, Assistant Manager- NSDL evoting@nsdl.co.in / 
1800 1020 990 /1800 224 430

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS:

 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2015,  and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial 

Standards on General Meetings (SS2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India, the Company read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars is pleased to provide 

members facility to exercise their right to vote at the 40th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

by electronic means (Remote Evoting) and the business may be transacted through 

e-Voting Services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 

I. The instructions for members for voting electronically are as under:-

 How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
 The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which 

are mentioned below:

 Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
 A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below

Type of 

shareholders
Login Method

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on 

a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 

e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 

to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see 

e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 

is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 

Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 

of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 

digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 

wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 

below for seamless voting experience.
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Type of 

shareholders
Login Method

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/
home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available 
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com 

home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP 

on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective 

ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities 

in demat 

mode) login 

through their 

depository 

participants

5. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see 

e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 

i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: 

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990  and  1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. 

Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

• 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

• For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your 

user ID is IN300***12******.
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b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL.

• 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
• For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

• EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company

• For example if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given 
below: 

a)  If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password 

to login and cast your vote.

b)  If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force 
you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i)  If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 

attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf 
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains 
your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii)  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have 
forgotten your password:

(a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.

com.

(b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

(c)   If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you 

can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
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number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

(d)   Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting 

the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.  After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 

the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 

status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 

meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify 
the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and 

also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.



14

Hindustan Hardy Limited NOTICE

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to cs@parikhassociates.com with 

a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website 
will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or 
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset 
the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 

44 30  or send a request to (Ms Soni Singh) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

4. If you are already registered with NSDL for e-voting then you can use your existing 

user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

co@hhardys.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID 
+ CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to co@hhardys.com. If you are an Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 

login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed 

to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting 

and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 

system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with 

the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for 

Remote e-voting.

II. The remote e-voting period commences on Saturday 24th September 2022 at (10.00 

a.m.) and ends on Monday 26th September 2022 at (5:00 p.m.). During this period 
shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized 

form, as on the cut-off date of Tuesday 20th September 2022 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be 

allowed to change it subsequently. 

III.  The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of Tuesday, 20th September 
2022. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register 

of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall 
be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting, as well as voting at the meeting. The 

members who have not cast their vote on the resolutions through remote e-voting shall 

be entitled to vote at the meeting on such resolutions

 Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who 

acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after  the 

notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday 
20th September 2022, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request 

at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with 
NSDL for remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for 

casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using 
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“Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30 . In 

case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares 

of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice 

and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Tuesday 20th September 2022 may follow 
steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.

IV.  Members will be provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting system 

during the video conferencing proceedings at the AGM and Members participating at the 

AGM, who have not already cast their vote on the resolutions by remote e Voting, will be 

eligible to exercise their right to vote on such resolutions during the proceedings of the 

AGM.

V.  The Members who have cast their votes through remote e-voting prior to the AGM 

may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again on such 

resolutions.

VI. Ms. Jigyasa N. Ved (FCS 6488) or failing him Mr. Mitesh Dhabliwala (FCS 8331) of 
M/s Parikh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, has been appointed as the 
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process in a fair 

and transparent manner.

VII. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General 

Meeting, unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting prior to the AGM and e-voting 

during the AGM and make not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the meeting, a 

consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to 

the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

VIII. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the 

Company’s website, www.hhardys.com and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.

nsdl.com immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman and the same shall 

be communicated to the BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed. 

      By order of the Board

DEVAKI SARAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CFO

DIN:06504653

Registered Office:
Plot No. C-12,

M.I.D.C. Area, Ambad, 

Nashik – 422 010. 

 

Place: Mumbai.

Date:24th August, 2022
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

THE STATEMENT SETTING OUT MATERIAL FACTS IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No 4

This Explanatory Statement is provided pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing 
Regulations’). However, the same is strictly not required as per Section 102 of the Act. 

In accordance with Sections 139 and 142 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Members of the Company had, at the 35th Annual 

General Meeting (‘AGM’) held on August 18,2017 appointed M/s Daga & Chaturmutha Chartered 
Accountants, Nashik, (ICAI Registration No-101987W) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
period of five (5) consecutive years from the conclusion of the 35th AGM till the conclusion of the 40th 
AGM of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act, no listed company can appoint/re-appoint an audit 
firm as a Statutory Auditor for more than two terms of five (5) consecutive years and accordingly, M/s 
Daga & Chaturmutha is eligible to be re-appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for another 

term of five (5) consecutive years. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on May 26, 2022, on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee has, after considering and evaluating various factors such as independence, 

industry experience, technical skills, etc. recommended the re-appointment of M/s Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants, Nashik, (ICAI Registration No-101987W) as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, to the Members at the ensuing AGM for a second term of five (5) consecutive years from 
the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of the 45th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 

2027, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company at a remuneration of ₹875000/-per annum 
for the financial year ending March 31, 2023, plus out-of pocket expenses and applicable taxes. The 
remuneration for the remaining term till the conclusion of the 45th AGM of the Company shall be 

determined based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and as mutually agreed between the 

Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors from time to time. 

Brief Profile of the Auditor is as under:
M/s Daga & Chaturmutha (‘the firm”) was constituted on 01/07/1982 having ICAI Firm Registration No. 
as 101987W. The Registered Office of the firm is at 201, Dhananjay Heights, Adwait Colony, Canada 
Corner, Nashik - 422005.

Mr. Daga is the Chartered Accountant, Cost Management Accountant and a Commerce Graduate 

having considerable audit experience in working across sectors which include Manufacturing, 

Insurance, Banking, Automobile, Construction and Service Sectors.

Mr. Daga is actively involved in Manufacturing Sector Working for over 25 years - is well versed with 

sector issues and has also handled many audits of companies in this space. 

Besides Audit he also has varied experience in Taxation, Strategic Planning, Restructuring, Advisory 

and Mergers & Acquisitions.
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As required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Statutory Auditors have 

confirmed that they have subjected themselves to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of 
ICAI

M/s Daga & Chaturmutha Chartered Accountants, Nashik, (ICAI Registration No-101987W) has 
consented to its re-appointment as Statutory Auditors and has confirmed that their re-appointment, if 
made, shall be in accordance with Sections 139, 141 and other applicable provisions of the Act and 

rules framed thereunder. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board commends the Ordinary Resolution 

set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for approval of the Members of the Company. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (‘KMP’) of the Company and their respective 
relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of 
the accompanying Notice

Item No 5 – Regularization and appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin as Independent Director of the 
Company.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

appointed Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575) as an Additional Director with effect from February 11, 
2022 to hold office till the date of the Annual General Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Act.

A brief profile of Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin is as under:

Sanjiv Bhasin is a career banker, with over 40 years’ experience, gained through working in different 
geographies in Asia, Africa and Europe. He has been in leadership roles for over 20 years across 

various banks and financial services organizations, most recently having served as the CEO of AfrAsia 
Bank, based in Mauritius. As CEO of AfrAsia Bank, Sanjiv positioned the bank for sustainable growth 

in a challenging environment. After his stint at AfrAsia Bank, Sanjiv founded Radian Finserv in India, 

focused on retail asset backed loans (gold loans). 

Prior to AfrAsia, Sanjiv has undertaken different CEO roles including CEO, DBS Bank in India, CEO, 
Rabo Finance in India, CEO, HSBC Mauritius, among others.

 He has built a track record of building and scaling up operations and large-scale business transformation, 

and is at home with driving change and leading from the forefront. In the latter part of his career, Sanjiv 

has built a good expertise and understanding of the Africa-Asia-India connect. He has led the adoption 

of technology and digital services, and is known for his people centric leadership and the ability to build 

high performing teams. Sanjiv is an alumnus of XLRI, Jamshedpur, where he completed his MBA, and 

a Commerce graduate from Sri Ram College of Commerce, Delhi University.

His financial expertise and acumen will be invaluable to the company going forward.

In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act, Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575), 
being eligible, was also appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (five) 
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consecutive years from February 11, 2022 to February 11, 2027 not being liable to retire by rotation 
subject to the approval of shareholders.

Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN: 00001575) has consented to act as a Director of the Company and has given a 
declaration to the Board that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of 
the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. He has also confirmed that he is not debarred or disqualified from 
being appointed or continue as a Director by SEBI or any other authority. In the opinion of the Board, 

Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules thereunder for appointment 
as Independent Director and he is independent of the management.

The Company has received a Notice in writing from a Member of the Company along with the deposit 

of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin for the 
office of Director of the Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin as an Independent Director are available 

for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on all working days.

Having regard to the qualifications, experience and knowledge, his appointment as an Independent 
Director will be in the interest of the Company. The Board recommends the resolution as set out at 

Item no. 5 of the accompanying Notice for the approval by the members of the Company by way of an 

Ordinary Resolution.

Except Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin, none of the other Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and their respective relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 6- Place of keeping Registers and copies of Annual Returns
As per the provisions of Section 94 of the Act, approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution 

is required for the Company to have its Register of Members, the Register and Index of Debenture 

holders, if any, copies of all annual Returns prepared under section 92 of the companies Act,2013 

together with the copies of the certificate and documents required to be annexed thereto, to be kept at 
a place other than the Company’s Registered office, but within the same city, town or village where the 
Registered office of the Company is situated.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the 
Members.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is,in any way, 

concerned or interested in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice.

By order of the Board

DEVAKI SARAN
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & CFO

DIN:06504653

Registered Office:
Plot No. C-12,

M.I.D.C. Area, Ambad, 

Nashik – 422 010. 

 

Place: Mumbai.

Date:24th August, 2022



20

Hindustan Hardy Limited ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Information as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

Particulars Ms. Devaki Saran Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin
Age 37 67
Date of Appointment 04-08-2014 11-02-2022

Qualification B.S in Mechanical 

Engineering from Carnegie 

Mellon University in the 

U.S.A, MBA from Harvard 

Business School

He is alumnus of XLRI, 

Jamshedpur, where he 

completed his MBA, and a 

Commerce graduate from Sri 

Ram College of Commerce, 

Delhi University

Expertise/Experience in 
specific functional area

After graduating with 

University Honors, she joined 

UBS investment Bank in New 

York City and worked in the 

Financial Institutions Group 

Focusing on banks and 

specialty finance companies. 
Later, she returned to India 

and started working with the 

company.

He is a career banker, with 

over 40 years’ experience, 

gained through working in 

different geographies in Asia, 
Africa and Europe. He has 

served as the CEO of AfrAsia 

Bank, based in Mauritius. He 

has founded Radian Finserv in 

India, focused on retail asset 

backed loans (GOLD LOANS). 

He has led the adoption of 

technology and digital services, 

and is known for his people 

centric leadership and the 

ability to build high performing 

teams

Directorships in other 

companies

1. XLO India Ltd

2. Business Combine Limited

3. Hermes Consultants Limited

4. Bombay Footwear Pvt Ltd

01. Radian Finserv Private 

Limited

Memberships of 

Committees in other 

companies (Includes only 
Audit & Stakeholders 
Relationship Committees)

Nil Nil

No. of shares held in the 
Company

375 Nil

Relationship between 
Directors inter-se and the 
KMPs

She is related to Mr. S.C. 

Saran Director, of the 

Company

No
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Number of Board meetings 

attended during 2021-22
04 Nil

Listed entities from which 

the person has resigned in 

the past three years 

Nil Nil

Remuneration Rs. 59.47 Lacs per annum Nil
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BOARD'S REPORT 
[Pursuant to Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013]

To

The Members

HINDUSTAN HARDY LIMITED

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Fortieth Annual Report together with the Statement 

of Accounts for the year ended on March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March 2022
Rs. in Lakh

For the year ended 
31st March 2021

Rs. in Lakh

Revenue from Operations 6258.27 4461.30
Other Income 14.76 5.16
Total Income 6273.04 4466.47
Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 604.35 519.48

Finance Cost 31.61 18.61
Depreciation 70.41 60.03
Profit / Loss before tax 502.32 440.84

Tax Expenses 134.11 122.36
Profit / Loss after Tax 368.22 318.48

Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for the year 6.79 (12.14)

Profit / Loss for the year attributable to owners of 
the company 375.00 306.34
Surplus brought forward from Previous Year 559.97 253.62
Profit available for appropriation 934.97 559.96
Dividend Paid during the year (29.97) -

Tax on Proposed Dividend - -

Surplus Carried Forward 905.00 559.96



23

BOARD'S REPORT 2021-2022

OPERATIONS/STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

Overall, the Company ended the year with a 40% increase in sales relative to FY 20-21 and 60% 
over FY 19-20. The base for comparison was low – sales were depressed in 20-21 by the lockdown 

for the first 1.5 months and in 19-20 by the automotive recession.

First quarter sales reflect the impact of the Delta variant in India when all customers slowed down 
production due to local restrictions and the aftermarket sales dropped sharply.

Sales were particularly strong during the second quarter due to a booming agricultural market, 

particularly in India. Export markets also performed strongly as countries appeared to recover 

from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Sales in the third quarter dropped slightly due to the 

combined effect of the Christmas shutdown overseas, the end of the agricultural season in India 
and the fact that the commercial vehicle market remained sluggish.

The fourth quarter witnessed the invasion of Ukraine by Russia which severely impacted the 

European markets. Additionally, commodity prices sharply increased and scarcity of raw material, 

especially steel, caused production losses across the industry as steel mills prioritized exports. The 

Company was not immune and sales were substantially lower than the second and third quarters.

The bottom line was negatively impacted due to the continued increase in commodity prices; a 
trend which continues. Costs across all heads increased sharply as suppliers across the board 

demanded price increases. Steel prices increased by 22% during the year and the cumulative 
increase over the past 2 years has been in excess of 40%, especially in alloy steels. These 
increases are compensated by domestic customers with delayed effect. Additionally, steel prices 
in export markets do not move in tandem with the Indian market and therefore price increases 

are more difficult. To compound the problem, traders and manufacturers alike capitalized on the 
scarcity and demanded prices far in excess of the market settlements.

The Company is in the process of negotiating price increases with all customers. 

The company’s cost reduction efforts across all areas partially helped to offset this impact though 
the quantum of the increases was so huge that profitability did suffer.

The Euro weakened over the course of the year which negatively impacted export realization as 

the majority of exports are to the Euro zone.

Other income was impacted by the withdrawal of the Merchandise Exports from India Scheme 

(MEIS) with effect from 01st January, 2021. Realisations under this scheme were ~2% of export 
value to selected countries.

The company continues its value engineering efforts to try and offset this impact and has initiated 
a fresh cost reduction initiative.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

There was no transfer made to any Reserve during the year.
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DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors has recommended dividend of @ Rs. 2 per share (20 %) on the equity 
shares of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022. 

OUTLOOK

The impact of the Covid pandemic appears to have abated; however the effect of the Ukraine war 
has impacted countries across the globe. Globally, inflation has skyrocketed and the cost and 
availability of energy is a major source of concern, especially in Europe. Export sales have already 

been impacted but people believe that the worse is still to come as the threat of an energy crisis in 

the winter looms large over Europe.

The outlook for the Indian market is better than for exports – the commercial vehicle segment has 

strengthened and the agricultural segment is reasonably stable; though sales are well below the 
peak levels seen in FY 21-22.

Steel prices rose sharply in the first quarter of FY 22-23 which proved to be the steepest quarterly 
increase to date. The government finally stepped in to rein in input prices and control runaway 
inflation, and imposed an export duty of 15% on select pig iron, flat-rolled products of iron or non-
alloyed steel, bars and rods and various flat-rolled products of stainless steel and another 45% on 
iron ore pellet in May 22. Steel prices are likely to moderate in Q3 22-23, with some softening seen 

in Q2. 

Price of other inputs and commodities remains high and electricity tariffs in Maharashtra continue to 
increase. This has increased the manufacturing costs which are rarely compensated by customers, 

though discussions are underway.

The Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) has been discontinued since 01st January, 

2021 and replaced by the Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) scheme 

from 01st January, 2021. Realisations under MEIS were ~ 2% of export turnover whereas that 
under RoDTEP will be under 0.5%.

The company is continuing its efforts to expand its product offering and target new customers. These 
efforts are somewhat hampered by limitations on travel and also the fact that many companies 
have put new supplier development activities on hold due to the pandemic. Despite these setbacks, 

management is trying to identify new customer segments for both new and existing products.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of the report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4 meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held during the year on 11.06.2021, 
13.08.2021, 26.10.2021, 11.02.2022.The details of attendance of directors at these meetings is 
given as an Annexure.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and Articles of Association, Ms. Devaki 

Saran (DIN: 06504653) Director of the Company, retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible offers herself for re-appointment.

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the 

Company:

1. Ms. Devaki Saran, Executive Director & CFO

2. Mr. Vijay Pathak, Executive Director & COO

3. Ms. Sunita Nisal, Company Secretary

The Board of directors at its meeting held on February 11, 2022, appointed Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (DIN 

00001575) as an Additional Director who holds office upto the ensuing annual general meeting and 
as an Independent Director of the company for a period of five years from February 11, 2022 to 
February 10, 2027 subject to the approval of shareholders.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Directors who are independent directors, have submitted a declaration as required under section 

149(7) of the Act that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub Section 
(6) of Section 149 of the Act and under regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time and there has been no change 

in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent director during the year. In the 
opinion of the Board, the independent directors possess appropriate balance of skills, experience 

and knowledge, as required.

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Audit committee of the Board of directors of the Company consists of the following members

1. Mr. S. C. Saran

2. Mr. Jehangir H. C. Jehangir

3. Mr. Richard Koszarek

4. Mr. Navroze S Marshall

5. Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin (w.e.f. 11.02.2022)

Four meetings of the Audit committee were held during the financial year.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a mechanism (“Vigil 

Mechanism”) for employees including directors of the Company to report genuine concerns. The 

provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the Section 177 (9) of the Act. The Whistle 
Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) is uploaded on the Company’s website www.hhardys.com
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND CRITERIA FOR 
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Policy for directors and senior management and the Criteria for selection of 

candidates for appointment as directors, independent directors, senior management as adopted 

by the Board of Directors are placed on the website of the Company (www.hhardys.com).  There 

has been no change in the policies since the last fiscal year. 

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the remuneration 
policy of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 

knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i)  In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and there are no material departures;

(ii) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 
Company for that period;

(iii) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

(vi) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The internal auditors also regularly reviews the adequacy of internal financial control system. 

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATES

The Company does not have any subsidiary/ joint ventures/ associates. 
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 

31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website on www.hhardys.com.

AUDITORS

The Members of the company had, at its Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 18th August, 

2017 appointed M/s. Daga & Chaturmutha, Chartered Accountants, Nashik, (ICAI Registration No- 
101987W) as the Statutory Auditors for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion 
of the Thirty Fifth AGM till the conclusion of the Fortieth AGM. M/s. Daga & Chaturmutha, Chartered 
Accountants, have submitted a certificate confirming that their appointment is in accordance with 
Section 139 read with Section 141 of the Act.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, an audit firm acting as the statutory auditor 
of a company is eligible to be appointed as statutory auditors for two terms of five years each. 
Accordingly, the Audit Committee and Board of Directors of the Company, recommended the re-

appointment of M/s. Daga & Chaturmutha, Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the 
Company for a second term of five years to hold office from the conclusion of the 40th AGM 
till the conclusion of the 45th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027. Further, the 
remuneration to be paid to Statutory Auditors for FY 2022-23 is ₹875000 plus applicable taxes 
and the remuneration for the remaining tenure of their second term as Statutory Auditors shall be 

mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and auditors, from time to time.

The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified to act as Auditors and are 
eligible to hold office as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The shareholders do consider and appoint the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013, M/s. Parikh & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed as the Secretarial 
Auditors for auditing the secretarial records of the Company for the financial year 2021-2022.

The Secretarial Auditors’ Report is annexed as Annexure I. 

AUDITORS’ REPORT AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Statutory Auditors’ report and Secretarial Auditor’s report does not contain any qualifications, 
reservations or adverse remarks.

During the year under review, there were no instances of fraud reported by the auditors, under 

Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information in accordance with Clause (m) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act read with 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this report as Annexure II.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the particulars of employees are annexed as 

Annexure III.

DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORY/ JUDICIAL AUTHORITY

No significant or material orders were passed by any regulator or court that would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made investments during the year ended 

March 31, 2022

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors of the Company has framed a risk management policy and is responsible 

for reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee 
has additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the 
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing 

basis. The company conducts a monthly review of major risks and actions to minimize these in its 

Monthly Management Meeting. Efficacy of risk management is also one of the criteria on evaluated 
in the IATF certification process.

The Covid-19 pandemic highlighted the importance of effective risk management and contingency 
planning and the Company and Board are evaluating this policy in view of the risks that have been 

particularly highlighted by the pandemic.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3) (h) of the Act read with 

rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Form AOC-2 and the same forms 

part of this report as Annexure IV.
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EVALUATION OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
An annual evaluation of the Board’s own performance, Board committees and individual directors 

was carried out pursuant to the provisions of the Act in the following manner:

Sr. 
No.

Performance 
evaluation of :-

Performance 
evaluation 
performed by :

Criteria

1. Each Individual 
director

Nomination and 
Remuneration 
Committee

Attendance, Contribution to the Board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on 
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and guidance provided, 
key performance aspects in case of executive 
directors etc. 

2. Independent 
directors;

Entire Board 
of Directors 
excluding the 
director who is 
being evaluated

Attendance, Contribution to the Board and 
committee meetings like preparedness on 
the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution, and guidance provided 
etc.  

3. Board, its 
committees 
and individual 
directors

All directors Board composition and structure; effectiveness 
of Board processes, information and functioning, 
fulfilment of key responsibilities, performance 
of specific duties and obligations, timely flow of 
information etc.

The assessment of committees based on 
the terms of reference of the committees and 
effectiveness of the meetings.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of 
The Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 (POSH Act) and rules made thereunder. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, 
trainees) are covered under this policy.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 
2021-22.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under POSH Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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LISTING AGREEMENT AND LISTING FEES
The Company entered into Listing Agreement with BSE Limited in terms of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 issued on September 2, 2015 
effective from December 1, 2015. 
The Company has paid the listing fees to BSE Limited for the year 2022-2023. 

INSIDER TRADING REGULATIONS AND CODE OF DISCLOSURE
The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure 
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for 
Regulating, Monitoring and reporting of Trading by Insiders in accordance with the requirements 
of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015 and is available on our website 
(http://www.hhardys.com)  

GREEN INITIATIVES
As a part of Green initiative and in compliance of MCA Circulars, Electronic copies of the Annual 
Report 2021-2022 and Notice of the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company are sent to all 
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s). 
Members who have not updated their email addresses with the Company may update their 
email addresses by writing to the Company or Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents, 
M/s Satellite Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd., Office No. A/106-107, Dattani Plaza, East West 
Compound, Andheri Kurla Road, Safed Pool, Sakinaka, Mumbai-400072. Members holding shares 
in dematerialised mode are requested to register/update their email addresses with the relevant 
Depository Participants.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management’s discussion and 
analysis is set out in this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
As per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Corporate 
Governance is not mandatory to the Company.

MAINTENANCE OF COST ACCOUNTING RECORDS
The company is not required to maintain cost records as specified under section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
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FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

HINDUSTAN HARDY LIMITED

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Hindustan Hardy Limited(hereinafter called the 

Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information to the extent provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made 
by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by The Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, 

the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, 
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2022 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed  thereunder;

(iv)   Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings;

‘Annexure I’ - To BOARD'S REPORT
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)

(a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015;

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 

Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client;(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(vi)    Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

1. The Factories Act, 1948

2. The Contract Labour Act, 1970
3. The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923

4. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
5. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i)   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect 

to board and general meetings.
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(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, etc.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 

that took place during the period under review.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and 

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period no events occurred which had bearing on the 

Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc

      For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: Mumbai                                   Signature:                      

Date: May 26, 2022                     Name of Company Secretary:   Jeenal Devilal Jain

            Partner

                                                                        ACS No: 43855      CP No: 21246 
              UDIN: A043855D000395173

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms 

an integral part of this report.
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 26, 2022

‘Annexure A’

To, 

The Members 

HINDUSTAN HARDY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 

to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company.

    For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

                                  Signature: 

               Name of Company Secretary:   Jeenal Devilal Jain

Partner

ACS No: 43855     

CP No: 21246 
            UDIN: A043855D000395173
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A. Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo: [Rule9.10(3)]

1.  Conservation of energy: 

i. Steps taken / impact on conservation of energy, with special reference to the 
following: 

•	 Installation of a small compressor for overtime or holiday working so as to reduce 

electricity consumption.

•	 Reusing of old tooling for preliminary operations to reduce tool consumption.

•	 Effective utilization of heat treatment furnaces to minimize turning the furnaces on 
and off and ensure full loads. 

•	 TPM (Total Productive Maintenance) initiative to repair old machines and reduce oil 

and other leakages.

•	 Installation of meters to monitor electricity consumption on a daily basis. Separate 

meters have been installed for the heat treatment department and machine shop. 

Management is analyzing what causes spikes in electricity consumption and taking 

appropriate action.

•	 Camera installed to measure Power Factor reading and ensure company receives 

maximum Power Factor Incentive.

•	 Installation of a separate lower capacity compressor in the heat treatment department. 

The heat treatment department frequently runs in all three shifts. Previously the 

company only had only one higher capacity compressor which was run used even 

only the heat treatment department was operational. This has led to considerable 

energy savings.

•	 Installation of LED lightbulbs in place of CFL lightbulbs both of the shop floor and 
the office. This is an ongoing process as fused lightbulbs are being replaced by LED 
powered ones. 

•	 High horse power motors on old machines are being replaced by Variable Frequency 

Drive motors on an ongoing basis.

•	 Paperless initiative to reduce printing and conserve paper.

•	 Skylights in the factory ceiling eliminate the need for lighting during the day as far 

as possible.

ii. Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy including 
waste generated 

•	 Installation of Solar Powered LED Streetlight fixtures.
•	 Installation of 400 LPD Solar Hot water System at Canteen.

•	 Installation of a composter and wormiculture for canteen waste. 

•	 Evaluation of installing solar panels is also being carried out. 

iii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment Rs. NIL

‘Annexure II’ - To BOARD'S REPORT
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2. Technology : 

i)  Our technology had been imported from our Collaborators, Spicer Gelenkwellenbau 

GmbH, Germany in 1984. Since then upgradation has continued in consultation with 

various Agencies as well as with in-house expertise.

3. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo are as under         

(Rs. in Lakh)

1. Foreign Exchange Earnings     2716.87 

2. Foreign Exchange Outgo on account of import     12.24 

3. Foreign exchange outgo on account of capital expenditure 13.34

4. Foreign exchange outgo on account of Travel  8.06 

Total Foreign Exchange outgo       33.37  
    Net Foreign Exchange earnings 2683.50 

 For and on behalf of the Board
 

 S. C. Saran                  

  Chairman

Place: Mumbai
Date:  26th May, 2022
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

A. Remuneration of Directors [Section197(12) and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
 

I]

(a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 

employees of the Company for the financial year:

Ratio to median 

remuneration

Chairman 8.13

Executive Director & CFO 13.42

Executive Director & COO 11.03

(b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief executive officer, chief 
financial officer, company secretary in the financial year:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary

% increase/decrease in remuneration 
in the financial year

Chairman 14.29

Executive Director & COO 20.01

Executive Director & CFO  * 9.26

  * Includes PL encashment 

 (c) The percentage increase in the average remuneration of employees in the financial 
year:   14.91

 (d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 160
 (e) Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there 
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

  Average increase was in remuneration is in-line with industry practise and necessary for 

employee retention.

 (f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
  The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

‘Annexure III’ - To BOARD'S REPORT
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ANNEXURE IV
FORM AOC2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

(...Continued on page no. 41)
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Place: Mumbai
Date: 26th May, 2022                                                                                        

 (b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable

 (c)  Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions – Not Applicable

 (d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 
any: Not Applicable

 (e)  Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: - Not Applicable

 (f)  Amount paid as advances, if any: - None

For and on behalf of the Board
 

 S. C. Saran                  

  Chairman
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 AS PER SCHEDULE V OF SEBI LODR: ANNUAL REPORT 
[See Regulation 34(3) and 53(f)]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a.  Industry structure and developments.

• Sales are primarily to 4 customer segments – domestic OEMs, export customers, industrial 
customers and aftermarket. In FY 21-22, the Company’s largest market segment was exports, 
followed by domestic OEMs, industrial and lastly aftermarket customers.

• The Company serves 4 sectors – commercial vehicle, agricultural, off-highway and construction 
equipment and industrial.

• The commercial vehicle segment was weak for the first three quarters of FY 21-22 but exhibited 
signs of recovery in the fourth quarter. 

• The aftermarket segment was adversely impacted for the past 2 years due to various lockdowns, 
either nationwide or localised.

• Sales to the agricultural segment are cyclical due to effect of the monsoon and higher in the 
second and third quarter of the financial year. Monsoon expectations and forecasts drive 
sentiment and sales to a large extent. Favourable government policy has also provided a fillip 
to sales over the past 2 years.

b. Opportunities and Threats.

• The Indian propeller shaft market is dominated by 4 major players who all jostle for market share 
amongst the major commercial vehicle manufacturers, the differentiating factor being price 
competitiveness. As a result, margins, are shrinking which is exacerbated by the commodity 
increases. Efficiency, productivity and economies of scale are now of the utmost importance in 
today’s inflationary environment.

• The domestic after-sale market is also crowded by a number of low-cost suppliers supplying 
unbranded generic components at low prices. The Company was a late entrant to the after 
sales market.Sales and marketing efforts are paying off and gradually the brand is being 
recognised as a quality product. In the scenario, price competitiveness is key as it is difficult to 
pass on repetitive steep increases to the end consumer.

• In the export market, Indian manufacturers have a cost advantage compared to their European 
and American counterparts. However quality standards are very stringent, technological 
expectations are high and monetary penalties for rejections or product failures is very onerous. 
Export to the US and Europe have significant potential; however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic 
many companies had put sourcing decisions and changes on hold. Additionally skyrocketing 
shipping costs had severely disrupted international trade. However as the severity of the 
pandemic appears to have abated and companies adjust to the new normal, several global 
companies have started to revisit their efforts, especially as cost reduction has attained utmost 
importance.

• Several Indian companies are now taking steps to indigenize components that were previously 
imported which provides an attractive opportunity for Indian manufacturers.
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c. Segment–wise or product-wise performance.

• The company operates in a single segment.

• Total revenue from operations in FY 21-22 was Rs. 6273.03 Lakh as compared to 4466.47 
Lakh in FY 20-21. Sales increased as export and domestic markets performed. Agricultural 
sales were boosted by a good monsoon and favourable government policy.

Key Financial Ratios FY 2021-22 FY 2020 -21  Increase / Decrease 
(in % terms)

Debtors Turnover Ratio (Times) 3.88 3.67 5.72
Debtors Collection Period (Days) 94 99 -5.45

Inventory Turnover (Times) 6.64 4.19 58.47
Interest Coverage Ratio (Times) 16.89 24.68 -31.56
Current Ratio (Times) 1.59 1.33 19.55

Debt Equity Ratio (Times) 0.43 0.31 38.71
Operating Profit Margin (%) 8.51% 10.29% -17.30
Net Profit Margin (%) 5.87% 7.13%. -17.67
Return on Net Worth (%) 24.61% 27.67% -11.06

• Payment terms with customers are generally between 60 and 90 days from date of inwarding 
of the material at the customer end. The companies billing cycle starts from the dispatch date 
from the factory premises. 

• The prior year closing inventory increased as certain export shipments were not dispatched due 
to the container shortage. Therefore closing inventory for FY 20-21 increased. Additionally, the 
company had renegotiated minimum order quantities and safety stock levels with suppliers. 
This together with very prudent ordering helped to reduce inventory at year end.

• Profitability ratios deteriorated due to the increase in commodity prices and manufacturing costs.

d. Outlook

•	 The impact of the Covid pandemic appears to have abated; however the effect of the Ukraine 
war has impacted countries across the globe. Globally, inflation has skyrocketed and the cost 
and availability of energy is a major source of concern, especially in Europe. Export sales have 
already been impacted but people believe that the worse is still to come as the threat of an 
energy crisis in the winter looms large over Europe.

•	 The outlook for the Indian market is better than for exports – the commercial vehicle segment 
has strengthened and the agricultural segment is reasonably stable; though sales are well 
below the peak levels seen in FY 21-22.

•	 Steel prices rose sharply in the first quarter of FY 22-23 which proved to be the steepest 
quarterly increase to date. The government finally stepped in to rein in input prices and control 
runaway inflation, and imposed an export duty of 15% on select pig iron, flat-rolled products of 
iron or non-alloyed steel, bars and rods and various flat-rolled products of stainless steel and 
another 45% on iron ore pellet in May 22. Steel prices are likely to moderate in Q3 22-23, with 
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some softening seen in Q2. 

•	 Price of other inputs and commodities remains high and electricity tariffs in Maharashtra 
continue to increase. This has increased the manufacturing costs which are rarely compensated 
by customers, though discussions are underway.

•	 The Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS) has been discontinued since 1st January 
2021 and replaced by the Remission of Duties and Taxes on Exported Products (RoDTEP) 
scheme from 01st January, 2021. Realisations under MEIS were ~ 2% of export turnover 
whereas that under RoDTEP will be under 0.5%. 

•	 Despite these setbacks, the company is continuing its efforts to expand its product offering and 
target new customers. These efforts are somewhat hampered by limitations on travel and also 
the fact that many companies have put new supplier development activities on hold due to the 
pandemic. Despite these setbacks, management is trying to identify new customer segments 
for both new and existing products.

e. Risks and concerns.

• The severity of the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have abated and countries across the globe 
have relaxed curbs and controls. 

• However the threat of Covid has been replaced by the effect of the Ukraine war as countries 
across the globe are facing sky-high inflation, raw material and energy shortages. Europe has 
been the worst affected and the fear remains that Russia will restrict the supply of gas in the 
winter leading to an energy crisis.

• Increasing competition and rising costs across all commodities are also putting downward 
pressure on margins. The Company is trying to counter this by focusing on operational efficiencies.

f. Internal control systems and their adequacy.

• The adequacy of control systems is reviewed on a monthly basis by the management and 
assessed quarterly by the internal auditor and the Board.

• The internal control systems in place are more than adequate. Evaluation and improvement of 
controls is an ongoing process.

g. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

• The Company’s cost reduction initiatives have yielded results as the Company was profitable 
despite the sharp increase in commodity prices. 

• Efforts to further improve efficiency have gained momentum as cost control and productivity are 
now of utmost importance. These will prove to be the differentiating factor for manufacturers to 
remain competitive in today’s inflationary environment. 

h. Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number 
of people employed.

• Total number of employees decreased to 160 from 189 at the end of the prior financial year.
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MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The date of the meeting was – 11.06.2021, 13.08.2021, 26.10.2021, 11.02.2022

Name of the Director No. of Board Meetings attended

Mr. S. C. Saran 4

Mr. Jehangir H. C. Jehangir 3

Ms. Devaki Sanjaya Saran 4

Mr. Richard George Koszarek 4

Mr. Vijay Pathak 4

Mr. Navroze Marshall 3

Mr. Sanjiv Bhasin* 0

*Appointed as an Additional Director w.e.f. 11.02.2022

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The date of the meetings was – 11.06.2021, 13.08.2021, 26.10.2021, 11.02.2022

Composition Meetings attended

Mr. Richard Koszarek 4

Mr. S.C. Saran 4

Mr. Jehangir HC Jehangir 3

Mr. Navroze Marshall 3

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Date of the Meetings were – 11.06.2021, 13.08.2021, 11.02.2022

Composition Meetings attended

Mr. Richard Koszarek 3

Mr. S.C. Saran 3

Mr. Jehangir H.C. Jehangir 2

Mr. Navroze Marshall 2

DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES HELD AND 
ATTENDED BY DIRECTORS
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The date of the Meetings was – 11.06.2021, 13.08.2021, 26.10.2021, 11.02.2022

Composition Meetings attended

Mr. S.C. Saran 4

Mr. Richard Koszarek 3

Mr. Jehangir H.C. Jehangir 3

Ms. Devaki Saran 4

Mr. Navroze Marshall 3

SHARE TRANSFERS AND STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of 

HINDUSTAN HARDY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hindustan Hardy Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch, 2022, and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement 

of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according  to  the  explanations  given  to  

us,  the  aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its 
profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing(SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the  financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no 
key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
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Board’s Report and Shareholder’s information but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the  financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s Responsibility for the  Financial Statements
The  Company’s  Board  of  Directors  is  responsible  for  the  matters  stated  in  section  134(5)  of  

the  Act  with  respect  to  the preparation of these  financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 

in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the  financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the  Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these  financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 

are required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in the  financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the  financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the  financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief which were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid  financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report. 
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:  
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to me, the remunerations paid by the company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to me :

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in 
its financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as 
such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not 

arise.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection fund by the company.

(a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
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or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 

any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 

shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b)  The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief 

no funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 

foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 

writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 

or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c)  Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 

the representations under sub-clause (i) (ii) of Rule 11(e), provided under (a) and 

(b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

iii. As stated in the financial statements;

(a) The Final Dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the 

company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

(b) The Board of Directors of the company have proposed final dividend for the year 
which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of 

the Act, as applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in an annexure, a statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Daga & Chaturmutha

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101987W
 

                                                                                    CA Anand Daga

Partner
                Membership No. 048684 

Place : Nashik
Date : 26th May 2022
UDIN : 22048684APSTFK1378
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ANNEXURE ''B'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec-
tion of our report of even date to the members of HINDUSTAN HARDY LTD.

i.  

(a)  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including  quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of Right-of use 

assets.

 (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of records of the Company, the Company has regular program of physical verification of 
its property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified 
in phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this program, certain 

properties, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity 
of physical verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the company and nature of 
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) In respect of immovable property of land that has been taken on lease, the lease agreement 

is in the name of the company where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment 

(including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property 

Transactions  Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii. 

a)  The inventory, along with stock lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the 
management during the year. Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 
reasonable intervals by the management. No discrepancies were noticed on verification 
between the physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in aggregate of 
each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts. 

For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have also been 
obtained.

b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in 

excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets.
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c) According to information given to us and sample check of returns / statements produced 
before us - the returns or statements filed by the Company with such bank are in agreement 
with the books of account of the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided 

guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 

companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) to 3(iii) (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans or provided any 

guarantee or security as specified u/s 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits 

from public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 

148(1) of the Act in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that prima facie, 

the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not 

carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether these are 

accurate or complete

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the books and records 

examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 

including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, 

Customs Duty, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. It is informed 

that there here are no such undisputed dues as at 31st March 2022 outstanding for a period 

exceeding six months from the date they became payable.

(b)  According to information and explanation given to me there are no disputed amounts 

outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Sales Tax/ VAT, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty & Cess as at the last day of financial year.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, 

previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the 

Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix. 

(a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and 

borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by 

any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.
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(c)  During the year, the Company has obtained term loan. In our opinion, and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, the term loan has been applied for the purpose for 

which the same was obtained.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to me and on an overall examination of 

the balance sheet of the Company, the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised 

for long term purposes. 

(e)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination 

of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associates.The 

company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the 

Order is not applicable.

(f)  The company does not hold any securities in its associate companies. The company does not 

have any subsidiary or joint venture. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

x. 

(a)  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year . Accordingly, 

clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. 

(a)  Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has 

been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report

(c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by 

the Company during the year. 

xii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 

Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions 

with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

financial statements of Company as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
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size and the nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till date for the period under audit.

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not entered into any non-cash transactions as specified in Section 192 of the Companies 
Act , 2013 with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, accordingly the 

said clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. 

(a)  The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during 
the year. Accordingly,the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

company.

(c)  The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the the Order 

is not applicable to the Company

(d)  Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, 

the Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not,however, 

separately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is accurate and 

complete. Accordingly the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the 

Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 
the immediately preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3 

(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 

on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 

audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 

of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 

We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 

we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period 

of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when 

they fall due. 

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us corporate social 
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responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the company. Hence, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of 

the Order are not applicable.

xxi. The reporting under Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of the audit of 

Standalone Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has 

been included in this report.

 

For Daga & Chaturmutha

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101987W

                                                                                                       CA Anand Daga

Partner

            Membership No. 048684

Place: Nashik
Date : 26th May 2022
UDIN : 22048684APSTFK1378
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Referred to in paragraph 1 (f)under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date on the Financial Statements of HINDUSTAN HARDY LTD. 
as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HINDUSTAN HARDY LTD. 

(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year endedon that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. These responsibilities include the design,implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of 

its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 

Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error.

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 

of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 

effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively 
as at 31st March, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting 
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Daga & Chaturmutha

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 101987W

                                                                                                       CA Anand Daga

Partner

            Membership No. 048684

Place: Nashik
Date : 26th May 2022
UDIN : 22048684APSTFK1378
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2022

See accompanying notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements.

(₹ in Lakh)

In terms of our report attached 
For Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101987W

CA Anand Daga
Partner   
Place : Nashik
Date : May 26, 2022
UDIN: 22048684APSTFK1378

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman : 
S.C. Saran
[ DIN-00032194 ]
  
Executive Director & COO
Vijay Pathak
[DIN-02700611 ]

Executive Director & CFO
Devaki Saran  
[ DIN-06504653 ] 

Company Secretary
Sunita Nisal
[ ACS-49122 ]

Particulars Note
 As at 

31.03.2022
 As at 

31.03.2021
A ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 654.38 453.65
Capital work-in-progress 2 17.95 64.69
Intangible assets 2 9.62 4.81
Right to use Asset 2 4.93 5.02
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 7 12.09 5.51
Other financial assets 3 19.10 19.09
Deferred tax assets 4 48.93 32.00
Other non-current assets 5 22.62 109.90
Sub total - Non-current assets 789.63 694.66
Current assets
Inventories 6 476.41 519.30
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 7 1909.33 1705.81
Cash and cash equivalents 8 153.21 68.96
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9 2.58 7.32
Others ( Interest Receivable ) - 0.75 0.75
Other current assets 10 36.31 50.62
Sub total - Current assets 2,578.59 2,352.76
TOTAL - ASSETS 3,368.21 3,047.42

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 11 149.85 149.85
Other Equity 1346.17 1001.13
Sub total - Equity attributable to owners 1,496.01 1,150.98
Share application money, pending allotment - -
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 12 210.17 98.86
Deferred Tax Liability 17 36.34 34.02
Sub total - Non-current liabilities 246.51 132.88
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 12 435.45 261.02
Trade payables 15 947.52 1003.59
Other financial liabilities 13 2.36 3.51
Other current liabilities 16 142.06 389.67
Provisions 14 66.62 78.97
Current Tax Liabilities - 31.67 26.80
Sub total - Current liabilities 1,625.68 1,763.56
TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,368.21 3,047.42



61

Statement of Profit and Loss 2021-2022

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

See accompanying notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements.

(₹ in Lakh)

In terms of our report attached 
For Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101987W

CA Anand Daga
Partner   
Place : Nashik
Date : May 26, 2022
UDIN: 22048684APSTFK1378

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman : 
S.C. Saran
[ DIN-00032194 ]
  
Executive Director & COO
Vijay Pathak
[DIN-02700611 ]

Executive Director & CFO
Devaki Saran  
[ DIN-06504653 ] 

Company Secretary
Sunita Nisal
[ ACS-49122 ]

Particulars Note
Year ended 
31.03.2022

Year ended 
31.03.2021

Income

Revenue from operations 18 6258.27 4461.31
Other income 19 14.77 5.16
Total Income 6,273.04 4,466.47

Expenses

Cost of raw material consumed 20 3305.22 2186.18
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - 0 5.38

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 21 61.98 (9.65)
Employee benefits expense 22 1148.67 959.16
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 70.41 60.03
Finance costs 23 31.61 18.62
Other expenses 24 1152.81 805.91

Total expenses 5,770.71 4,025.64

Profit / (Loss) before tax 502.32 440.83

Tax expense :
For the current year

Current tax - 148.72 122.08

Deferred tax - (14.61) 0.27
134.11 122.35

Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations 368.22 318.48

Other comprehensive income

Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 9.07 (16.22)
Tax relating to the above (2.28) 4.08

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 6.79 (12.14)

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 375 306.34

Earnings per share {in ₹} {of ₹10 each} : 25

Basic 24.57 21.25

Diluted 24.57 21.25
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(₹ in Lakh)

(Continued..)

Particulars  Year ended 

31.03.2022

 Year ended 

31.03.2021

A Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax  502.32  440.83 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation  70.41  60.03 
Profit on sale of  Property, Plant & Equipment (4.47)  (1.06)
Interest and Finance Charges  31.61  18.62 
Bad Debts Written Off  13.34  22.69 
Interest income (9.14)  101.75 (3.61)  96.68 

Operating profit before working capital changes  604.08  537.51 

Adjustment for :
Decrease / (Increase) Trade receivables  (223.44)  (700.13) 
Decrease / (Increase) Financial and 
Non-Financial assets

 115.39  37.99 

Decrease / (Increase) Inventories  42.89  7.33 
Increase / (Decrease) Trade payables  (56.07)  245.16 
Increase / (Decrease) Financial and Non-Financial 
liabilities and provisions

 (261.12)  130.69 
 (382.35)  (278.96)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  221.73  258.55 

Direct taxes paid  (146.13)  (91.20)

Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)  75.60  167.35 

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of  Property, Plant & Equipment  (230.98)  (92.72) 
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment/
Capital Subsidy received

 6.32  (224.66)  1.24  (91.49)

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)  (224.66)  (91.49)
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See accompanying notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements.

Notes :
1. Figures in brackets represent cash outflow.
2. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS - 7 

specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
3. Direct taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between 

investing and financing activities.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(₹ in Lakh)

In terms of our report attached 
For Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101987W

CA Anand Daga
Partner   
Place : Nashik
Date : May 26, 2022
UDIN: 22048684APSTFK1378

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman : 
S.C. Saran
[ DIN-00032194 ]
  
Executive Director & COO
Vijay Pathak
[DIN-02700611 ]

Executive Director & CFO
Devaki Saran  
[ DIN-06504653 ] 

Company Secretary
Sunita Nisal
[ ACS-49122 ]

Particulars  Year ended 

31.03.2022

 Year ended 

31.03.2021

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowing  368.22  132.47 
Repayment of borrowings  (82.47)  (132.95)

Interest and Finance Charges  (31.61)  (18.62)
Interest Income  9.14  4.35 

Dividend Paid  (29.97)  233.31  -  (14.74)

Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities ( C )  233.31  (14.74)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash &
cash equivalent (A+B+C)

 84.25  61.12 

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period  153.21  68.96 

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period  68.96  7.83 

Total  84.25  61.12 

D Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand  0.52  0.43 

With banks :
In current account  152.69  68.52 

In deposit account  -  - 

Cash and bank balance as per note 9  153.21  68.96 
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Remeasurement Loss (Net) on defined benefit plans(Income) Rs.6.79 Lakhs-[ March 2021 (Exp) Rs 
12.14 Lakh] is recognised as part of  Retained Earnings. 

Note : See accompanying notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached 
For Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101987W

CA Anand Daga
Partner   
Place : Nashik
Date : May 26, 2022
UDIN: 22048684APSTFK1378

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman : 
S.C. Saran
[ DIN-00032194 ]
  
Executive Director & COO
Vijay Pathak
[DIN-02700611 ]

Executive Director & CFO
Devaki Saran  
[ DIN-06504653 ] 

Company Secretary
Sunita Nisal
[ ACS-49122 ]

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

A. Equity Share Capital ₹ in Lakhs

Balance as at  01st April ,2020  149.85 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  - 

Balance as at  31 March, 2021  149.85 

Balance as at  01st April ,2021  149.85 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  - 

Balance as at  31 March, 2022  149.85 

B.
Other Equity 

For the year Ended 31st March, 2022 Total 
Equity           

₹ in 
Lakhs

Reserves & Surplus- ₹ in Lakhs

Particulars Capital 
Reserve

Share 

Forfeiture 

Reserve

General 
Reserve

Retained 

Earnings  

Balance as at 1st April 2020 15.00 0.08 426.09 253.63 694.80

Dividend for Previous  Year paid  -  -  -  -  - 
Profit / (Loss) for the year  -  -  - 318.48  318.48 

Other Comprehensive Income\ 
(Loss) for the year

 -  -  -  (12.14)  (12.14)

Balance as at 31st March 2021  15.00  0.08  426.09 559.97  1,001.13 

Balance as at 1st April 2021  15.00  0.08  426.09  559.97  1,001.13 

Dividend for FY-2020-21 paid during the year  (29.97)  (29.97)

Profit / (Loss) for the year  -  -  -  368.22  368.22 

Other Comprehensive Income\ 

(Loss) for the year
 -  -  -  6.79  6.79 

Balance as at 31st March 2022  15.00  0.08  426.09  530.00  971.17 
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Note No. 1 – General Information and Significant Accounting Policies :

1 Corporate Information:
Hindustan Hardy Limited is a Public Limited Company listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. 

It was incorporated on October 16, 1982 under the Companies Act, 1956. It is engaged in the 
business of designing and manufacturing of Propeller Shafts and other accessories required 

for automotive, industrial, agricultural and other applications. The registered office of the 
Company is located at Nashik, Maharashtra, India. 

During the year the company has operated its manufacturing facility as per the guidelines 

framed by the Ministry of Home Affairs , the State of Maharashtra as well as Local 
Administration on COVID-19. In preparation of these results,the company has considered the 

possible effects that may result due to COVID-19 such as recoverability of assets including 
inventories & trade receivables. In developing the assumptions relating to future uncertainities 

in the economic conditions due to COVID-19, it has used relevant internal & external sources 

of information including economic forecasts and expects that the carrying amount of these 

assets are recoverable. However, the actual impact of COVID-19 may differ from that as 
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. Management will continue to 
closely monitor the developments.

2 Basis of Preparation :
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended 
by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for Defined 
Benefit Plans – which are measured as per actuarial valuation.

3 Significant Accounting Policies :

a. Property, plant and equipment; Capital work-in-progress & Intangible assets :

i. Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets are stated at their original 

cost of acquisition / installation ( net of GST credits wherever applicable) net of 
accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses – if any. Subsequent 

expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a 

separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic 

benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost to the item 
can be measured reliably. All repairs and maintenance expenses on assets are 

charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

ii. Property, plant and equipment or intangible assets not ready for the intended use on 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
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the date of balance sheet are disclosed as "Capital Work -in-Progress". Advances 

given towards acquisition/construction of fixed assets outstanding at each Balance 
sheet date are shown under “Capital Work-in-Progress”.

iii. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated 

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

iv. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant & 

equipment and intangible assets are reviewed in each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

b. Depreciation:

i. Tangible Assets :

I. Depreciation on assets is provided on straight line method at the rates and in the 

manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.   

 

II. Depreciation on additions to Property, plant & equipment and intangible assets is 

provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition or installation, and in the 

case of a new project, from the date of commencement of commercial production. 

III. Depreciation on assets sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped is provided up 

to the date on which the said asset is sold, discarded, demolished or scrapped.

ii. Intangible Assets :

I.  Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on straight line method over the 
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication 

that the intangible asset may be impaired.

II.  The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with 

a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. 
 

Transition to Ind AS : 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value 

of all of its Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets recognized as at 

1 April 2016 measured as per the previous IGAAP and use that carrying value as the 
deemed cost of respective assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets : 
The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. 
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An impairment loss, if any is recognised in the statement of profit and loss wherever the 
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 

is greater of the assets net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, 

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
risk specific to the assets. A previously recognised impairment loss if any, is increased 
or reversed depending on the changes in circumstances, however the carrying value 

after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by 

charging usual depreciation/amortization if there was no impairment.   
    

c. Inventories :

i. Raw Material / Components : 

Lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for 

use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

ii. Stores & Spare parts are valued at Cost.

iii. Finished goods and Work in Progress :

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on absorption basis and 

include material, labour and production overheads. Material cost for the purpose of 

valuation is ascertained on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 

less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale. Work-in-progress 

and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads. 
 

d. Financial Instruments :

The presentation of financial instruments is as per applicable Ind AS.

e. Provisions and Contingencies :
 

A provision is recognised for a present obligation as a result of past events if it is probable 

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and in respect of 
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are not 
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate of the amount 

required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 
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A contingent liability is not recognized – but is only disclosed, unless the possibility of an 

outflow of resources is remote. 

f. Foreign Currency Conversion :

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (INR) which 
is also its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date 

of transaction or at the rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction. 

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s 
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the 
year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as income or expenses 
in the year in which they arise.

g. Revenue recognition :

i. Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 

payment is being made. 

ii. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognised.

iii.    Sale of goods :
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the  
goods have passed to the buyer which generally coincides with the delivery of goods 

to customers. Accordingly, domestic sales are accounted on dispatch of products to  

customers and Exports are accounted on the basis of date of bill of lading / delivery terms. 

GST is collected on behalf of the Government and no economic benefit flows to the entity 
and does not result in an increase in equity, consequently revenue is presented net of GST. 

Revenue disclosed are net of GST, discounts and sales returns, as applicable.

iv.    Rendering of services :
Revenue from services is recognized (net of GST , as applicable) pro-rata over the 

period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

v.     Duty Drawback / MEIS – Export Incentives : 
    The export incentives are accounted for on realization basis as there is uncertainty 

    about the actual amount to be realized after due compliances of all the conditions. 

vi.      Interest income :
     Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield 

on the asset.
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h.     Retirement and other employee benefits :

i. Defined Contribution Plan :

Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Provident Fund managed by Government 
Authorities, Employees State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are 

considered as defined contribution plan and the same is charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss for the year in which the employee renders the related service.

ii. Defined Benefit Plan :

Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity, is considered as defined benefit obligation 
and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the date of Balance 

Sheet. Re-measurement, comprising of Actuarial gain / loss, if any, is immediately 
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under retained earnings. The same 

is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Prior year comparisons are treated 
accordingly.

The company has taken a Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance Scheme Policy from Life 

Insurance Corporation of India for future payment of gratuity to retiring employees. The 

balance lying with LIC of India in this policy is compared with the liability as calculated 

in actuarial valuation report. Any shortfall in the same is recognized as liability and any 

surplus is shown as asset.  

Provision for Leave Encashment is made on actual basis on the assumption that the 

same would be payable at the end of the accounting period – if all the employees were 

to terminate their services. 

The company also contributes certain percentage of salary for all eligible employees 

in managerial cadre towards Superannuation Fund managed by approved trust / Life 
Insurance Corporation of India.

i.      Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing cost directly attributable to acquisition and construction of assets that 

necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalized as part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready 

for intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which 

they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 

connection with the borrowing of funds.

j. Taxation :

Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred income tax and includes any 

adjustments related to past periods in current and / or deferred tax adjustments that may 
become necessary due to certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. 
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Current Income Tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined 

in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 

1961.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates used to compute the 

amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss are recognized      
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 

to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and      

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used 
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for 
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for  all 
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets / liabilities are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset 

to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is 

reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 

apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the assets realized, based on tax 

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 

reporting period.

k. Leases :

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the 

substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or 
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contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that 

right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee :
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments 
are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected 

general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

l. Segment Reporting :

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 

to chief operating decision makers.

The board of directors of the company has appointed Management team which has been 

identified as being the chief operating decision maker, consists of Chief Executive  Officer 
(CEO) / Chief Operating Officer (COO), Chief Finance Officer (CFO) , Production Manager, 
Sales & Marketing Manager and Design Head. They assess the financial performance and 
position of the Company and make strategic decisions.

m. Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period from 
continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period 
from continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders is divided by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period - adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

n. Classification of Current/Non-Current Assets and Liabilities :

All assets and liabilities are presented as Current or Non-Current as per the Company’s 

normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 

2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for 

processing and their realization, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 

months for the purpose of Current / Non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

o. Significant estimates and assumptions :

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 

contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 



72

Hindustan Hardy Limited Notes to Financial Statements 

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 

affected in future periods. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances.

p.   Classification of Legal matters and Tax litigations :
 

The litigations and claims to which the Company is exposed are assessed by 

management with assistance and support of external specialized lawyers. Disclosures 

related to such provisions, as well as contingent liabilities, also require judgment and 

estimations if any.

 

All estimates mentioned above are further detailed in the corresponding disclosures.
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 Non Current Current

As at   
31.03.2022

As at   
31.03.2021

As at   
31.03.2022

As at   
31.03.2021

3 Other Financial Assets
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - - - -

Others (include insurance claim and 
other receivables)

- - - -

Deposits 19.10 19.09 -

Total 19.10 19.09 - -

4 Deferred tax assets :
On account of timing differences - i.e.
expenditure incurred / provided for 
but allowable as deduction for tax 
purposes in future years
-Provision for compensated absences

and other employee benefits 38.31 30.91 - -
-Other Expenses 10.62 1.09 - -

Total 48.93 32.00 - -

5. Other Non- Current Assets
Balance with Government Authorities - 83.83 - -

Gratuity Fund Balance (LIC) 22.62 26.07 - -

Total 22.62 109.90  -  - 

6. Inventories

(At cost or net realisable value, 
whichever is lower )
Raw material - - 215.79 197.09
Finished goods - - 58.05 72.53
Stores and spares parts - - 23.89 23.50

Work in Progress - - 178.67 226.18
Total - - 476.41 519.30

7. Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 12.09 5.51 1,909.33 1,705.81
Unsecured, considered doubtful - - 12.45 -

12.09 5.51 1,921.78 1,705.81
Less:- Provision for Doubtful receivables - - 12.45 -

Total 12.09 5.51 1,909.33 1,705.81

( ₹ in Lakhs)
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 Non Current Current

As at   
31.03.2022

As at   
31.03.2021

As at   
31.03.2022

As at   
31.03.2021

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks

In current accounts - - 152.69 68.52
Cash on hand - - 0.52 0.43

Total - - 153.21 68.96

9.
Bank balances other than Cash and 
Cash Equivalents
Earmarked Balances with Bank -
For unpaid Dividends.

- - 2.30 3.45

Margin with Bank/ 
Other earmarked balances.

- - 0.28 3.88

Total  -  - 2.58 7.32
10. Other Current Assets

Balance with Government Authorities - - 18.89 23.95

Prepaid Expenses - - 12.42 10.25

Advances to Suppliers - - 4.56 11.90

Others - - 0.44 4.52

Total - - 36.31 50.62

(₹ in Lakhs)

Ageing Schedule for Trade Receivables As on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021- 
( Taken as certified by Management )

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 

6 months

6 months to 

one year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 

3 years
Total

Undisputed Trade 

Receivables- 

considered good

1,836.30 73.03 12.09 - - 1,921.42

Undisputed Trade 

Receivables- 

considered doubtful

- 12.45 - - - 12.45

Disputed Trade 

Receivables - 

Considered good

- - - - - -

Disputed Trade 

Receivables - 

considered doubtful

- - - - - -

As of March 31, 2022 1,836.30 85.47 12.09 - - 1,933.87

As of March 31, 2021 1,697.69 8.11 5.51 - - 1,711.32
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As at  31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

No. of 
Shares

Amount  
₹ Lakhs 

No. of  
Shares

Amount  
₹ Lakhs

 11. Equity Share Capital
Share capital
Authorised

Equity shares of ₹10 each 50,00,000 500.00 50,00,000 500.00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of ₹10 each fully paid-up 14,98,450 149.85 14,98,450 149.85

 a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding
At the beginning of the year 14,98,450 149.85 14,98,450 149.85

At the end of the year 14,98,450 149.85 14,98,450 149.85

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

The Company is having only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 each. Each 
holder  of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, 
the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.  

c)  Shareholding of Promoters as on 31st March 2022. 

 Name of the Shareholder  No. of 
shares 

% Holding   No. of shares  % Holding  

As at 31.03.2022 As at 31.03.2021

XLO India Limited 9,89,993 66.07% 9,89,993 66.07%
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 Non Current  Current 

 As at   
31.03.2022 

 As at   
31.03.2021 

 As at   
31.03.2022 

 As at   
31.03.2021 

12  Borrowings 

 Secured 

Term Loans - Axis Bank 210.17 98.86 68.48 52.43

Vehicle Loan - ICICI Bank   -     -     -     -   

Working Capital Loans from 
Axis Bank

  -     -   366.97 208.58

Total   210.17   98.86   435.45   261.02 
Details of Loans :

A. Term Loans :

Sr. Name of Bank & Facility 
Rate of 

Interest as on 
31.03.2022
Per annum

Sanctioned

Limit

Outstanding As On

Repayment

Schedule31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Rs. Rs.

1. Axis Bank- Vehicle Loan. 8.70% 26.00 8.87 14.27 60 EMI's                            
w.e.f. Oct 2018

2. Axis Bank - Vehicle Loan. 9.65% 7.00 3.16 4.55
60 EMI's                            

w.e.f. Apr 2019

3.
Axis Bank-Term Loan Ag. Plant & 
Machinery.

8.75% 200.00 133.05 98.22
60 EMI's                              

w.e.f. Apr 2021

4.
Axis Bank- Working Capital Term 
Loan.

8.50% 34.00 26.48 34.25
36 EMI's                                 

w.e.f. Oct 2021

5.
Axis Bank- Addl. Working Capital 
Term Loan.

8.25% 65.11 65.11 0.00
60 EMI's                                 

w.e.f. Apr 2023

6. Axis Bank - Vehicle Loan. 7.60% 18.56 17.26 0.00
60 EMI's                              

w.e.f. Nov 2021

7. Axis Bank - Vehicle Loan. 7.50% 26.57 24.72 0.00
60 EMI's                              

w.e.f. Nov 2021

Total 278.65 151.29

Out of the above, 

repayable within 12 months
68.48 52.43

Repayable after 12 months 210.17 98.86
Total 278.65 151.29

B. Other Terms & Conditions of Loans -
a.     Working Capital Loans from Axis Bank are secured by hypothecation of stock and debtors. It includes pre-shipment and post-      

        shipment credit against export orders.       

b.    Terms Loans against Plant & Machinery , Working Capital Term Loan and Working Capital Loans from Axis Bank are against 

       mortgage of factory land and building situated at Plot No. C-12 , MIDC , Ambad ,Nashik . Further these loans are secured by 

       entire current assets and movable fixed assets of the company present and future.  

c.     Vehicle Terms Loans are against security of respective vehicles.

( ₹ in Lakhs)
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 Non Current  Current 

 As at   
31.03.2022 

 As at   
31.03.2021 

 As at   
31.03.2022 

 As at   
31.03.2021 

13 Other Financial Liabilities
Unclaimed Dividend  -   2.30   3.45 

Deposit  -   0.06   0.06 
Total  -  -   2.36   3.51 

14 Provisions

Provision for Compensated Absences  -  -   66.62   78.97 

Total  -  -   66.62   78.97 

15 Trade Payables
Current :

a) Total outstanding dues of creditors of  micro and small enterprises   154.94   251.78 

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises   537.30   592.18 

Sub Total   692.24   843.96 

Unbilled Dues ( Accrued expenses)   255.28   159.64 
Total Trade Payables.   947.52   1,003.59 

Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006 are as below :
a)   Dues remaining unpaid as at March 31 

       Principal.   154.94   251.78 
       Interest on the above.   0.90   1.27 
b)   Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Act, along with the amount of payment     
      made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year 

      Principal paid beyond the appointed date.  -  - 

      Interest  paid in terms of  section 16 of the Act.  -  - 

c)   Amount of interest due and payable for the period of  delay on payments made  
      beyond the appointed day during the year.

  0.90   1.27 

d)  Further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date    

     when the interest  due as above are actually paid to the small enterprises.
 -  - 

e)  Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at March 31.   2.17   1.27 
     Due to Micro & Small  Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on    
     the basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

     The Company has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within  the    
     pre-agreed credit terms. Interest is charged on the overdue balances as per terms agreed with Vendors.

(₹ in Lakhs)
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( ₹ in Lakhs)
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payables As at March 31, 2022 & March  31, 2021-
( Taken as certified by Management ).

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than 

one year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 

3 years
Total

MSME 154.94   -     -     -     154.94 

Others 530.81 1.19 1.32 3.99   537.30 

Disputed  Dues- MSME   -     -     -     -     -   
Disputed Dues- Others   -     -     -     -     -   
As of March 31, 2022 685.75 1.19 1.32 3.99 692.24

As of March 31, 2021 821.06 10.31 10.22 2.37 843.96

 Non Current  Current 

 As at   
31.03.2022

 As at   
31.03.2021

 As at   
31.03.2022

 As at   
31.03.2021

16 Other Current Liabilities
Advance from customers and others  -   12.82   5.12 

Acceptances of Hundis from Suppliers   45.08   270.46 
Statutory Dues  -   12.26   34.81 

Others  -   71.91   79.28 
Total  -  -   142.06   389.67 

17 Deferred Tax Liability
Difference between book balance and tax 
balance of fixed assets   36.34   34.02  -  - 

Total   36.34   34.02  -  - 
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 As at
 31.03.2022 

 As at 
31.03.2021 

18 Revenue from Operations

a) Sale of Products -( Excluding GST) 6,111.50 4,349.25

Sub-Total (a) 6,111.50 4,349.25

b) Other Operating Revenues

Sales of Services 6.30   -   

Sale of Scrap 95.94 56.84
Duty Drawback / MEIS 44.53 55.21

Sub-Total (b) 146.77 112.05

Total (a+b) 6,258.27 4,461.31
Note: 
The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product to a customer as and 
when it satisfies the performance obligation by transfering promised goods to a customer and 
customer obtains the control or benefit of the same.

19 Other Income

Interest Income 9.14 3.61
Misc. Income 0.59 0.50

Profit on Sale of Assets 4.47 1.06
Foreign Exchange Gain 0.57   -   

Total 14.77 5.16
20 Cost of Raw Material Consumed

Opening stock 197.09 211.71
Add : Purchases 3,323.93 2,171.56
Less: Closing stock 215.79 197.09

Total 3,305.22 2,186.18

21
Change in inventories of finished 
goods, work in progress

Closing stock 
Finished goods 58.05 72.53
Work-in-progress 178.67 226.18

236.73 298.71
Opening stock 

Finished goods 72.53 69.74
Work-in-progress 226.18 219.32

298.71 289.06
Total 61.98 (9.65)

( ₹ in Lakhs)
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 As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

22 Employee Benefit Expenses
Salaries and wages 984.23 817.09
Contribution to provident and other funds 88.82 85.59

Staff welfare expenses 75.62 56.49
Total 1,148.67   959.16 

23 Finance Cost

Interest on Term Loans (other) 8.84 3.44

Other Borrowing / Interest Cost 22.77 15.17
Total   31.61   18.62 

24 Other Expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts 219.95 143.23

Power and fuel 197.89 156.52
Packing and forwarding expenses 248.39 179.85
Rent 0.30 0.60
Repairs to buildings 11.33 0.70
Repairs to Plant & Machinery 81.78 32.82

Other Repairs 7.49 5.53

Insurance 14.17 13.61
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 1.67 1.70
Travelling Expenses & Conveyance Charges 27.06 4.75
Legal & Professional charges 97.02 70.01
Commission on Sales 1.62 1.20

Discount on Sales 2.13 0.78
Bad Debts /Advances written off / Provision. 13.34 22.69
Provision for doubtful debts 0.00 0.00

Directors' Fees 1.07 1.09

Exchange Fluctuation Loss   -   4.40

Loading & Unloading 96.89 64.66
Payments to Auditor ( Refer Note below ) 8.25 8.25

Miscellaneous expenses 122.44 93.53

Total   1,152.81   805.91 

Note :

Payment to Auditors :
As auditor :
Audit Fee 5.00 5.00

Tax Audit Fee 1.50 1.50

Limited Review 1.50 1.50

In other capacity :
Income Tax matters 0.25 0.25

  8.25   8.25 

(₹ in Lakhs)
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 As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021

25 Earnings per equity share (EPS) :
(i) Profit/ (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders for basic and 

diluted EPS   368.22   318.48 

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS   14.98   14.98 

(iii) Nominal value of equity share (in ₹)   10   10 

(iv) Earnings per equity share (in ₹)
Basic   24.57   21.25 

Diluted   24.57   21.25 

26.
Contingent liabilities and commitments  
(to the extent not provided for)

a) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be 
executed on capital account but not provided for

 25.20  208.64 

b) For Labour related disputed matters  73.38  60.00 

27 Related party disclosure (Ind AS 24)

a) List of Related Parties and relationships :
Party Relationship
1) Mr. S. C. Saran Chairman

2) Ms. Devaki Saran Executive Director & CFO

3) Mr. Vijay Pathak Executive Director & COO

4) XLO India Limited Promoter Company

Note : Only enterprises / parties with whom there are transactions during the current period / 
previous period are considered above.

b) Details of related party transactions :

Party Nature of Transactions
As at   

31.03.2022
As at   

31.03.2021

1) Mr. S. C. Saran Technical fees #   36.00   31.50 

2) Ms. Devaki Saran Remuneration   59.47   54.43 

3) Mr. Vijay Pathak Remuneration   48.87   40.73 

5) XLO India Limited Royalty #   1.87   1.04 

Amount Payable -Incl.Provn.   0.20   0.17 
     # Amounts excluding GST.

( ₹ in Lakhs)
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( ₹ in Lakhs )

Particulars Funded  

Gratuity Plan
Funded   

Gratuity Plan

As at  31.03.2022 As at  31.03.2021

I Change in defined benefit obligation during the year

1 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year   440.99   443.74 
2 Current service cost   16.82   16.97 
3 Interest cost   28.62   29.24 

4 Actuarial (gains) / losses   (7.39)   16.61 
5 Benefits payments   (50.48)  (65.57)
6 Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year   428.56   440.99 

II Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

1 Current service Cost   16.82   16.97 
2 Interest cost   (1.69)   (3.40)

3 Total expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss   15.13   13.57 

III
Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive income 
(OCI)

1 Acturial (gain)/losses on Obligation for the period   (7.39)   16.61 
2 Return on Plan assets (excluding interest income)  (1.68)  (0.38)

3 Total recognised in Other Comprehensive income (9.07)   16.22 

IV Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

1 Present value of defined benefit obligation   (428.56)   (440.99)

2 Fair value of plan assets   451.18   467.06 
3 Funded status [surplus / (deficit)]   22.62   26.07 
4 Net asset / (liability)   22.62   26.07 

28.       Employee benefits:

a) Defined Contribution Plans 

i) 
The company contributes certain percentage of salary & wages for all eligible employees 
toward providend fund managed by the Central Government.

ii) 
The company also contributes certain percentage of salary for all eligible employees 
in managerial cadre towards Superannuation Fund managed by approved trust / Life 
Insurance Corporation of India.

b) Defined Benefit Plans - As per actuarial valuation As At -31-03-2022
The company has defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five 
years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure, at 15 days salary (on last drawn 
basic salary) for each completed year of service. Other non funded plan include death 
& disability benefit. The following tables summarise the components of net benefit / 
expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the 
balance sheet:
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As At
31-03-2022

As At
31-03-2021

V Actuarial assumptions:

1 Discount rate 6.84% 6.49%
2 Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.84% 6.49%
3 Mortality IALM-(2012-14) IALM -(2006-08)

4 Turnover rate

For service 4 years 

and below- 5% p.a. & 
service 5 years and 

above - 4% p.a.

For service 4 years 

and below- 5% p.a. 
& service 5 years 

and above 4% p.a.

5 Retirement age 58 Yrs 58 Yrs

6 Salary escalation 8.00% p.a. 8.00% p.a.
VI Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

1 Within the next 12 months   107.28   68.20 
2 Between 2 and 5 years   295.15   324.02 

3 Between 6 and 10 years   62.75   102.48 

4 More than 10 years   99.63   84.44 

VII Sensitivity Analysis for significant assumption
Discount Rate

1% Increase   (12.10) (13.82)

1% Decrease   13.39   15.17 
Salary escalation rate
1% Increase   13.11   14.81 

1% Decrease (12.08)   (13.75)
Employee turnover rate
1% Increase   (1.10)   (1.14)

1% Decrease   1.19   1.26 

As at  31-03-2022 As at 31-03-2021

₹ Lakhs % ₹ Lakhs %
29. a)  Raw material consumed : 

      (i) Imported   11.20   0.34   9.57   0.44 

      (ii) Indigenous   3,294.02 99.66   2,176.61 99.56

Total   3,305.22 100.00   2,186.18 100.00

b)  Spares consumed :

     Indigenous   219.95 100.00   143.23 100.00

Total   219.95 100.00   143.23 100.00

( ₹ in Lakhs)
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(₹ in Lakhs)

Foreign 
Currency

₹ Lakhs Foreign 
Currency

₹ Lakhs
32. Disclosure of foreign currency 

exposure :
a) Outstanding trade payables for expenses   -     -     -     -   
b) Outstanding trade receivables In USD   161,844.80   120.43   104,000.83   74.59 

In EURO   661,509.41   547.60   740,409.88   622.02 
In GBP   82,913.00   80.69   -     -   

c) Outstanding Pkg.Credit Loan. In EURO   178,429.64   153.98   203,681   171.11 

33. CIF value of imports :
Raw materials   12.24   -   
Other items.   -     0.27 

34. Expenditure in foreign 
currency (accrual basis) :
Travel 8.06   -   
Capital Expenditure 13.34 -

35. Earnings in foreign exchange (accrual basis) :
F.O.B. value of exports   2,716.87   2,053.38 

36. Segment Reporting :

The Company is exclusively engaged in the business of designing and manufacturing of Propeller 
Shafts and other accessories required for automotive, industrial , agricultural and other applications 
which in the context of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 108) on "Operating Segments", is 
considered as a single operating segment.      

As At 31-03-2022 As At 31-03-2021

30. Details of Sales excluding GST :
Sales - ( Net )   6,111.50   4349.25 

Sale of Services   6.30   -   

Sale of Scrap   95.94   56.84
Total Sales   6,213.74   4406.09

31. Details of Domestic and Export Sales :
Domestic   3,497.44   2348.32 

Export   2,716.30   2057.77 
Total   6,213.74   4406.09
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37. Details of Leave Encashment Provision :  

Particulars
 Opening              

As at   
1st April 

Additions Utilisations  Reversal 
 Closing                  

As at  
31st March 

FY 2020-21   85.36   14.70   21.09  -   78.97 
FY 2021-22 78.97   7.51   19.87  -   66.62 

( ₹ in Lakhs)

38.   Ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 & March 31, 2021

Sr 

No.

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 Variance Reasons 

for [ > 25% ]
1 Current Ratio Current Asset Current 

Liabilities

1.59 1.33 19%

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.43 0.31 38% Note-1

3 Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio

Earnings available 

for Debt Service

Debt Service 5.06 10.07 -50% Note-2

4 Return on Equity 

(ROE) %
Total Comprehensive 

Income

Average Share 

Holders Equity.

28.33% 30.70% -8%

5 Inventory Turnover 

Ratio

Cost of  

Goods Sold

Average 

Inventory

6.76 4.17 62% Note-3

6 Trade Receivable 

Turnover Ratio

Gross Revenue from 

Operations

Average Trade 

Receivables

3.80 3.59 6%

7 Trade Payable 

Turnover Ratio

Gross Purchase  

of Goods

Average Trade 

Payables

5.28 3.70 43% Note-4

8 Net Capital 

Turnover Ratio

Revenue From 

Operations

Average Share 

Holders Equity

4.73 4.47 6%

9 Net Profit  
Ratio-( % )

Total Comprehensive 

Income

Revenue From 

Operations

5.99% 6.87% -13%

10 Return on Capital 

Employed-(ROCE)-%
Earnings Before 

Interest & Taxes

Average Capital 

Employed

36.13% 43.43% -17%

Management Explanations :   

Note-1 The debt has  increased during the year.

Note-2 The ratio has decreased as the company's debt has  increased during the year .  

Note-3 The ratio has increased due to higher turnover and  reduction in inventory.  

Note-4 Trade Payable Turnover ratio has increased on account of increase in purchases .  
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39. Directors’ Remuneration :
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(₹ in Lakhs) (₹ in Lakhs)
 a) Salaries   94.29   82.23 

 b) Contribution to Provident Fund and Other funds   3.74   3.28 

 c) Perquisites   0.68   0.61 
 d) Superannuation Fund Contribution.   4.68   4.29 

 e) Technical Fees   36.00   31.50 

 f) LTA & Incentives   4.95   4.75 
Total   144.34   126.66 

Note :      
i) As employee wise break-up of contibution to gratuity fund is not ascertainable, the same has not been 

included in the above figures.
      
ii) It is informed that the Chairman and Director, Mr. S. C. Saran has been paid professional fees of Rs. 31.50 

lakhs plus taxes for the year ended 31st March 2021 and Rs. 36.00 Lakhs plus taxes for the year ended 
31st March 2022  for the Technical Expertise and Services provided by him as a Consultant under section 
188 read with section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 2013.

   
iii) Directors sitting fees paid during the year  Rs.1.07 Lakh ( Rs. 1.09 Lakh - for the year ended 31-03-2021).

40. Dividend Distribution proposed :
Particulars 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(₹ in Lakhs) (₹ in Lakhs)
Proposed dividends on equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended 31-03-2022 Rs. 
2/- per share *   29.97  29.97 

 Total  29.97  29.97 

*Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and hence 
not recognised as a liability.                           
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41. As per information given, the company does not have relationship with any company which have been 

struck-off from  the register of Registrar of Companies.(ROC).    
 

42. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial 
year.

  

43. The Company has complied with requirements of number of layers prescribed under clause ( 87) of 
section 2 of the Act read with Companies ( Restrictions on No of layers ) Rules, 2017.

44. The Balances of Creditors and Debtors appearing in the balance sheet are subject to balance 
confirmation / reconciliation at the year end. The management is in the process of obtaining the 
respective confirmations in due course. However, it is informed that the reconciliation is not expected to 
result in any material adjustment in stated balances.

  

45. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the 
current year's presentation.       

In terms of our report attached 
For Daga & Chaturmutha 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 101987W

CA Anand Daga
Partner   
Place : Nashik
Date : May 26, 2022
UDIN: 21048684APSTFK1378

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman : 
S.C. Saran
[ DIN-00032194 ]
  
Executive Director & COO
Vijay Pathak
[DIN-02700611 ]

Executive Director & CFO
Devaki Saran  
[ DIN-06504653 ] 

Company Secretary
Sunita Nisal
[ ACS-49122 ]

See accompanying notes 1 to 45 to the financial statements.


